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St. James in 0ld Town is typical of the modest but distinctively
designed Episcopal churches built in America in the late 19th century.
Following a style popularized by Richard URjéh 's model country church
in Ryral Architecture of 1852, later Gothicbkésivalists such as Henry
Vayghn created more sophisticated interpretations of the small parish
church. Vaughn's St. James is a good example of this architectural trend.

3

t. James was built in 1892 upon the rectangular granite foundation
of an earlier Episcopal chapel of 1852, which was replaced because of its
deteriorated structural condition. The present church is of frame
construction, stands one story high with a gable ropf, and has an exterior
sheathing of. wooden shingles. The facade or north wall is composed of
seven bays. The first bay is comprised of a tall square tower near the
northwest corner of the building. The Ffirst story of the tower has an
entrance on the front. This entrance has a pair of arched board and
batten doors with medieval style iron hinges. Surrounding the doorway

is a gable roofed portico on which the gable is decorated with half
timbering and simple bargeboards. On the front of the tower's second
story is a vertical rectangular window with diamond paned glass. The
third stage of the tower is the open octagonal belfry which has above
each of it's openings, a panel of simple Gothic tracery. The belfry is
capped by an octagonal spire.

The remainder of St. James facade is on the first story. To the left of
the tower is a series of three, three part arched windows with diamond
paned .glass.. To the left of the windows is a secondary entrance, which is
located in a two part projecting vestibule. One section has a half gable
roof which continues :from:the roof: of the main building. The doorway is
located on the west wall, while a small three part diamond paned window
appeatrs: on the north side. The other section has a gable roof which
projects perpendicular from the main building. A rectangular brick
chimpey is located at the point where this -roof joins the main one. Onm
the north or facade wall of this section is a two part diamond paned
window. The gable is decorated with unornamented bargeboards and cut out
work. The final facade bay consists of a two part diamond paned window
with simple tracery at the top of each section.

The east and west walls of St. James Episcopal Church have similar
features. Each wall possesses a large rectangular window, which contains
eight elongated vertical sections that have diamond paned glass and simple
tracery appearing at the top. Each gable is ornamented with simple
bargeboards and a gable ornament with a cut out decoration of two Gothic
trefoils and a quartrefoil. Behind this ornament is a small rectangular
window. The church's south wall contains a series of three part diamond
paned windows identical to those on the facade.

The interior of St. James is basically unchanged from Henry Vaughn's
designs. On either side of the sanctuary is a series of Gothic columns
which support Gothic arches on the ceiling. The simple natural pine pews
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7. Description

are from the original church. The oak altar, altar rail and pulpit are in
the Gothic Style from Vaughn's designs. Originally, the sanctuary interior
was done completely in natural wood. After a minor fire in 1952, the floor
was painted red, while much of the woodwork was painted an ultra-marine
blue.

St. James Episcopal Church stands in the center of 0l1d Town's business
district. In addition to its significance as an example of late 19th
century Episcopal church architecture by Henry Vaughn, the building is a
major focal point in a community which has few surviving local landmarks.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. James Parish' 'in Old Town -was organized in 1849 and the first church
building of Gothic design, was erected in 1852. This structure proved
unable to withstand the stresses of time and in 1892 was replaced on the
same foundation with the present building designed by the noted Gothicist,
Henry Vaughn, one of only four designs by him in Maine. The others are
the Searles Science Center and Hubbard Hall at Bowdoin College and St.
Andrews Episcopal Céurch in Newcastle.

Henry Vaughn, gg.!icularly well known as an ecclesiastical architect,
was born in England in 1846. Educated there he studied under George F.
Boadley, the famous English Gothicist. Vaughn came to the United States
in 1881, after several years of successful practice. His apparent intention
was to bring an authentic interpretation of Gothic architecture to
America.

Opening an office in Boston, Vaughn:acquired over ‘the néxt :several
years a considerable reputation in the design of English Gothic churches
and institutional buildings. In the early 1900's Bodtey, now ‘himself -
in this country and established in Hartford, Connecticut, invited him
to share in preparing a competitive design for the proposed cathedral
church (S.S. Peter and Paul) in Washington. Successful in the competition,
the two men were commissioned architects for the project in 1906. ‘Pollowing
Bodley's death the next year, Vaughn assumed full charge of the work on
this monumental edifice, a task which he continued until his own death
in 1917. ‘

St. James Church, though relatively small, nevertheless reflects the
skill and maturity of its designer and is important as an excellent
example of Henry Vaughn's work.
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